MINISTRY FOR PRIMARY INDUSTRIES

IMPORTING COUNTRIES PHYTOSANITARY REQUIREMENTS

MEXICO

Status: Approved

Date: Date: 4 September, 2001

EXPORTERS ARE ADVISED TO CONFIRM THE PHYTOSANITARY IMPORT REQUIREMENTS PRIOR TO EXPORT FROM NEW ZEALAND

Amendment Record

Amendment No	Date:	Nature of amendment:	Approved by:
21	21 November 2023	Added <i>Thrips hawaiiensis</i> to section 2.4, List 1 Quarantine Pests	MM
20	25 August 2023	Updated link under section 2.2 Phytosanitary Import Permits. Corrected country name and changed appendix to list under section 2.4 Quarantine Pests.	AS
19	24 November 2017	Updated the import requirements of <i>Lilium</i> sp., section 4.3.2. Updated the general information, section 1 and quarantine pest, section 2.4 respectively.	GF
18	26 May 2017	Updated links to the consulting module of Mexico phytosanitary requirements website in section 2.1 and 2.2	НК
17	04 May 2017	Updated links to MPI website. Updated disclaimer and added fees and charges section 1.4. Removed Maximum Pest Limit (MPL), section 2.5. MPL is covered in the MPI Certification Standard	НК

ICPR MEXICO Status: APPROVED 21 November 2023 Page 1 of 27

		and is not within the scope of the ICPR. Reformatted presentation of the amendment record to start with most recent amendment.	
16	4 December 2015	The additional requirements for Queensland Fruit fly in Sections 3.1.1 and 4.1 have been removed from the ICPR and are no longer required.	JN
15	9 March 2015	Additional Queensland fruit fly requirements, sections 3.1.1 and 4.1.	VK
14	7 March 2014	Addition of 31 Quarantine pests as per 'NOM-016-SEMARNAT-2013'.	SM
13	13 November 2013	Additional declaration required for Lilium bulbs packed with growing media, section 4.3.2. Additional sentence, to clarify	SM
		scope, added to section 1.2.	
12	9 October 2013	Corrected additional declaration under <i>Lilium spp.</i> in section 4.3.2 and removed the Fenamiphos treatment.	SM
		Changed to heading of section 2.5 to 'MPI specified Maximum Pest Limits (MPL)'.	
11	11 Sept 2012	Added import requirements for Dried Corn (<i>Zea mays</i>), Section 4.1.2	VK
10	24 July 2012	Section 2.2 Import permits are no longer issued by Mexico	VK
		Amended the whole document to reflect that import permits are no longer required for Mexico	
		Added import requirements for the following commodities:	
		Section 4.1.2 Dried Peas (<i>Pisum</i> sativum)	
		Section 4.4.1, Radish seeds (Raphanus sativus)	
		Section 4.3.2 Lily bulbs (<i>Lilium</i> spp)	

ICPR MEXICO Status: APPROVED 21 November 2023 Page 2 of 27

		Also added the following Sections 3 & 4: All plants, their products and byproducts must be free of soil and other parts of plant (including leaves, twigs, straw etc) than the product being imported	
9.	29 May 2012	Section 2.4 - ten quarantine pests added.	СВ
		Section 4.4.1- Addition of the import requirements of carrot (<i>Daucus carota</i>) seed for sowing.	
		Whole document – Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry renamed as Ministry for Primary Industries (MPI)	
8.	21 May 2009	Amendment of fresh fruit Actinidia deliciosa to include A. chinensis (refer section 4.1.1). Correspondence with MFAT 20.5.09. Amendment of wording for wood packaging requirements as per ISPM 15 (refer section 3.6). Update of contact details for Mexico Plant Health Authority. Refer section 2.2.3. Import requirements for in-vitro plant material. Refer section 3.3.4 and 4.3.4 NOM-006-FITO-1996 and 007 1995.	GI
7.	31 July 2007	Amendment of Phytosanitary Certificates requirements. Section 2.3; Amended requirements for fresh fruit and vegetables (apples, pears and kiwifruit). Sections 3.1.1 and 4.1.1.	IV
6.	6 June 2007	Added suspension of apple exports until further notice.	ВМ
5.	23 March 2007	Amendment Section 1.1 of MPI contact details	SW
4.	1 February 2005	Removal of reference within Section 2.5 to categorised pest list. Amendment of MPI contact details Section 1.1 and 1.2. General reformatting of document.	WJH

ICPR MEXICO Status: APPROVED 21 November 2023 Page 3 of 27

3.	14 February 2003	Renaming and reformatting of standard. Amendment to Section 2.5 re MPLs.	WJH
2.	25 May, 2002	Amendment to Sections 2.2, 3.1.1 and 4.1.1 - Removal of requirement for a phytosanitary import permit for fresh apples and kiwifruit.	WJH
1.	4 September, 2001	Issue of EPS.	WJH

ICPR MEXICO Status: APPROVED 21 November 2023 Page 4 of 27

DISCLAIMER

The phytosanitary requirements in this document may be used as the basis for export certification. However, exporters should be aware that importing countries may change their requirements at any time; at short notice or without giving notice to New Zealand.

This information is provided strictly on the basis that the Crown, the Ministry for Primary Industries, its statutory officers, employees, agents and all other persons responsible for or associated with the compilation, writing, editing, approval or publication of the information:

1. disclaim any and all responsibility for any inaccuracy, error, omission, lateness, or any other kind of inadequacy, deficiency or flaw in, or in relation to, the information;

and

2. without limiting (1) above, fully exclude any and all liability of any kind on the part of all of them, to any person or entity that chooses to rely on this information

Compliance with this document is not to be taken as a guarantee that any particular goods will be granted access to any overseas market. We recommend that exporters work with their importers to obtain the most upto-date information.

ICPR MEXICO Status: APPROVED 21 November 2023 Page 5 of 27

Table of Contents

1	GENERAL INFORMATION	8
1.1	For enquires about this standard email the Plant Exports Group:	8
1.2	Scope	8
1.3	Phytosanitary Legislation	8
1.4	Fees and Charges	8
2	GENERAL REQUIREMENTS	9
2.1	Prohibitions	9
2.2	Phytosanitary Import Permits	9
2.3	Phytosanitary Certificates	10
2.4	Quarantine Pests	10
2.5	Inspection on Arrival	18
2.6	Sampling Rate	18
2.7	Ports of Entry	18
2.8	Transit Requirements	19
2.9	Wood Packaging	19
3	COMMODITY CLASS REQUIREMENTS	19
3.1	Fruit and Vegetables	19
3.1.	1 Fresh Fruit and Vegetables	19
3.1.2	2 Dried Fruit and Vegetables	20
3.1.3	3 Frozen Fruit and Vegetables	20
3.2	Cut Flowers and Foliage	20
3.2.	1 Fresh Cut Flowers and Foliage	20
3.2.2	2 Dried Cut Flowers and Foliage	20
3.3	Nursery Stock	20
3.3.	1 Budwood/Cuttings	20
3.3.2	2 Bulbs/tubers/corms/rhizomes etc.	20
3.3.3	3 Whole Plants	20
3.3.4	4 Tissue Culture	21
3.4	Seeds, Grains and Nuts	21
3.4.	1 Seeds, Grains and Nuts for Sowing	21
3.4.2	2 Seeds, Grains and Nuts for Consumption	21
3.4.3	3 Seeds, Grains and Nuts for Processing	21
3.5	Growing Media	21

3.6	Wood Packaging	.22
4 (COMMODITY SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS	. 22
4.1	Fresh Fruit and Vegetables	.22
4.2	Cut Flowers and Foliage	.23
4.2.1	Fresh Cut Flowers and Foliage	.23
4.2.2	Dried Cut Flowers and Foliage	.24
4.3	Nursery Stock	.24
4.3.1	Budwood / Cuttings	.24
4.3.2	Bulbs / tubers / corms / rhizomes etc.	.24
4.3.3	Whole Plants	.25
4.3.4	Tissue Culture	.25
4.4	Seeds, Grains and Nuts	.25
4.4.1	Seeds, Grains and Nuts for Sowing	.25
4.4.2	Seeds, Grains and Nuts for Consumption	.26
4.4.3	Seeds, Grains and Nuts for Processing	.26
4.5	Growing Media and Packing Material	.27
4.6	Microorganisms, Microbiologicals and Laboratory Specimens	.27
4.7	Miscellaneous	.27

ICPR MEXICO Status: APPROVED 21 November 2023 Page 7 of 27

1 General Information

Users of this document are strongly advised to read all sections to understand the phytosanitary requirements for a commodity.

1.1 For enquires about this standard email the Plant Exports Group: plantexports@mpi.govt.nz

Please state the nature of your enquiry in the subject line eg. Mexico query or pest interception or password re-set. For urgent enquiries phone +64 4 894 5693

1.2 Scope

The requirements listed in this Importing Country's Phytosanitary Requirement (ICPR) apply to product of New Zealand only, unless specifically stated.

This ICPR specifies Mexico's phytosanitary requirements. If a commodity or commodity group is not identified within this ICPR exporters should direct enquiries to:

- Mexico directly to ascertain requirements
- Ministry for Primary Industries (MPI)-Plant Exports

1.3 Phytosanitary Legislation

The following legislation controls the importation of plants and plant materials into Mexico:

- The Metrology and Normalisation Law, Federal Vegetable Health Law and Official Mexican Norms
- NOM-008-FITO-1995, by establishing the protection requirements and specifications for import of fresh fruits and vegetables.

1.4 Fees and Charges

Please note that the determination and provision of phytosanitary requirements for a commodity not listed within the ICPR may be undertaken on a cost recovered basis. A link to the list of Plant Exports Fees and Charges is available on http://mpi.govt.nz/exporting/food/fruit-and-vegetables/fees-and-charges/

ICPR MEXICO Status: APPROVED 21 November 2023 Page 8 of 27

2 General Requirements

2.1 Prohibitions

Mexico does not have a definitive list of commodities, which are prohibited entry. Entry of a specific commodity may be conditional upon the completion of a Pest Risk Analysis. Exporters are advised to liaise with their importer on a commodities 'entry status'.

Commodities not found on the Mexico Phytosanitary module below are to be subjected to a pest risk analysis:

https://sistemasssl.senasica.gob.mx/mcrfi/

2.2 Phytosanitary Import Permits

ref Questionnaire

Phytosanitary import permits are not required for plants or plant products entering Mexico.

MPI New Zealand have recently been advised that Mexico are no longer issuing phytosanitary import permits for imported horticultural products from New Zealand and have instead implemented a consulting module that contains the phytosanitary requirements for various horticultural commodities on the following link:

https://sistemasssl.senasica.gob.mx/mcrfi/

Commodities not found on the above module are to be subjected to a pest risk analysis.

Phytosanitary conditions for export may be requested from:

Mr. Javier Trujillo

Title/Position Director General of Plant Health Organization / affiliation Secretaría de Agricultura, Ganadería, Desarrollo Rural, Pesca y Alimentación (SAGARPA) Address Guillermo Pérez Valenzuela No. 127 Colonia del Carmen Coyocan Delegación Coyocan C.P. 04100 D.F.

Telephone (+52) 55 50903000 Ext. 51322 Fax (+52) 55 36268434

E-mail trujillo@senasica.sagarpa.gob.mx Alternative E-mail mpuente@senasica.sagarpa.gob.mx;ana.montealegre@senasica.gob.mx

or

Department of Phytosanitary Requirements of the General Directorate of Plant Health tel. (52) 55 54 03 41 ext 236 or 151

IPPC website: Shortcut to: https://www.ippc.int/en/countries/mexico/

ICPR MEXICO Status: APPROVED 21 November 2023 Page 9 of 27

2.3 Phytosanitary Certificates

ref Questionnaire

Phytosanitary certificates are required to accompany all consignments from New Zealand with the exception of:

- frozen fruit and vegetables
- inert growing media (excludes soil)
- packing material

The certificates must be verified by the Independent Verification Agency (IVA). The certificates must be supplied to MPI Plant Exports where they will be signed and returned to the exporter by courier. Mexico requires the certificates to be signed in ink ("wet signature") rather than in an electronic form.

2.4 Quarantine Pests

For a list of quarantine pests see List 1. The preferred name and classification used is checked for accuracy against the European and Mediterranean Plant Protection Organisation (EPPO) Global database (https://gd.eppo.int/). Please note that scientific names remains as the definitive name. In addition to the preferred name, MPI will also include synonyms specified by the importing country for use on additional declarations.

Quarantine pests for Mexico include organisms specified in List 1 of this ICPR, additional declarations and/or import permit.

Note: Exporters should be aware that New Zealand has a number of endemic and native organisms that are unlikely to be listed on an importing country's quarantine pest list, but would almost certainly be treated as guarantine pests if found at import inspection. Phytosanitary Inspectors should take this into account when making decisions about the eligibility of product for an overseas market and treat endemic and native species found at phytosanitary inspection as quarantine pests unless there is clear evidence to the contrary. The New Zealand Organisms Register provides a search tool that can be used to determine whether the organism is endemic. NZ introduced. Follow the link here: native to http://www.nzor.org.nz/search.

List 1 Quarantine Pests

Insects

Agrilus planipennis Anastrepha distincta
Aleurothrixus floccosus Anastrepha fraterculus
Anastrepha antunesi Anastrepha bistrigata Anastrepha leptozona

ICPR MEXICO Status: APPROVED 21 November 2023 Page 10 of 27

Anastrepha ludens

Anastrepha macrura

Anastrepha obliqua

Anastrepha ornata

Bactrocera melanota

Bactrocera minax

Bactrocera musae

Anastrepha pseudoparallela Bactrocera neohumeralis
Anastrepha serpentina Bactrocera occipilatis

Anastrepha sororcula

Anastrepha striata

Bactrocera occipilatis

Bactrocera oleae

Bactrocera papayae

Anastrepha sudamericano Bactrocera passiflorae
Anastrepha suspense Bactrocera philipiensis

Anoplophora spp Bactrocera psidii
Anthonomus grandis Bactrocera pyrifoliae

Anthonomus signatus Bactrocera tau

Apate spp Bactrocera trivialis

Arhopalus tristis Bactrocera tryoni

Asynonychus cervinus

Bactrocera tsuneonis

Bactrocera albistrigata

Bactrocera aquilonis

Bactrocera aquilonis

Bactrocera atrisetosa

Bactrocera atrisetosa

Bactrocera carambolae

Bactrocera zonata

Bactrocera carambolae Bactrocera zonata
Bactrocera caryeae Bemisia argentifolii
Bactrocera caudata Bemisia tabaci

Bactrocera correcta Bostrichus capucinus

Bactrocera cucumis

Bactrocera cucurbitae

Bactrocera cucurbitae

Bactrocera curvipennis

Camponotus spp. (except
Camponotus abdominalis
transvectus, C. abscisus, C.
atriceps, C. caryae, C.

Bactrocera decepiens atriceps, C. caryae, C. caryae, C. cerberulus, C. clarithorax, C. cuauhtemoc, C. claviscapus,

Bactrocera depressa C. hyatti, C. linnaei, C.

Bactrocera distincta
Bactrocera diversa
Bactrocera dorsalis

C. myatti, C. minaci, C. mucronatus, C. novogranadensis, C. pellarius, C. picipes, C. pellarius, C. rectangularis, C. rubrithorax, C. sanctaefidei,

Ceratitis catoirii

Bactrocera facialis

Bactrocera frauenfeldi

Bactrocera jarvisi

C. senex, C. sericeiventris)

Ceratitis anonae

Ceratitis capitata

Bactrocera kirki Ceratitis colae

Bactrocera kandiensis

ICPR MEXICO Status: APPROVED 21 November 2023 Page 11 of 27

Ceratitis cosyra

Ceratitis malgassa

Ceratitis pedestris

Ceratitis punctata

Ceratitis quinaria

Ceratitis rosa

Ceratitis rubivora

Cnephasia jactatana

Conotrachelus nenuphar

Coptotermes spp (except C. crassus, C. niger and C.

testaceus)

Costelytra zealandica

Ctenopseustis herana

Ctenopseustis obliquana

Cydia molesta

Dacus axanus

Dacus bivittatus

Dacus ciliatus

Dacus demmerezi

Dacus dorsalis

Dacus frontalis

Dacus Iounsburyii

Dacus punctatifrons

Dacus smieroides

Dacus solomonensis

Dacus telfaireae

Dacus vertebrates

Dendroctonus armandi

Dendroctonus micans

Dendroctonus murrayanae

Dendroctonus punctatus

Dendroctonus rufipennis

Dendroctonus simplex

Dendroctonus terebrans

Dinoderus spp (except D.

minutus)

Epiphyas postvittana

Euplatypus spp (except Euplatypus compositus, E

longuis, E. longulus, E. otiosus, E. parallelus, E. pini,

E. segnis)

Heterobostrychus spp.

Hylastes ater

Ips spp. (except Ips bonanseai, I. calligraphus, I. cribricollis, I. confusus, I. grandicollis, I.

emarginatus, I. hoopingi, I. integer, I. latidens, I. lecontei,

I. mexicanus, I. pini)

Leptocorisa acuta

Lichenophanes spp (except Lichenophanes fasciculatus,

L. penicilliatus, L. spectabilis, L. tuberosus, L. verrucosus)

Liothula omnivore

Lyctoxylon spp.

Lyctus spp. (except Lyctus brunneus, L. caribeanus, L.

carbonarius, L. planicollis, L. linearis, L. tomentosus and L.

villosus)

Lymantria dispar

Micrapate spp (except

Micrapate guatemalensis, M.

labialis, M. pinguis, M.

scapularis, M. sericeicollis, M.

unguiculata)

Minthea spp (except Minthea

rugicollis)

Nysius huttoni

Orthotomicus spp.

Planotortrix excessana

Planotortrix octo

Premnotrypes spp.

Rhagoletis cerasi

Rhagoletis cingulata

Rhagoletis completa

Rhagoletis conversa

ICPR MEXICO Status: APPROVED 21 November 2023 Page 12 of 27

Rhagoletis fausta

Rhagoletis indifferens

Rhagoletis juglandis

Rhagoletis lycopersella

Rhagoletis mendax

Rhagoletis nova

Rhagoletis ribicola

Rhagoletis striatella

Rhagoletis suavis

Rhagoletis tabellaria

Rhagoletis tomatis

Rhypodes clavicornis

Scolypopa australis

Sinoxylon spp.

Sirex noctilio

Stathmopoda horticola

Stathmopoda skelloni

Tetraleurodes usorum

Thrips obscuratus

Thrips palmi

Thrips hawaiiensis

Tomicus spp.

Trialeurodes abutilonea

Trialeuodes vaporariorum

Trogoderma granarium

Trogoxylon spp. (except Trogoxylon aequale, T.

praeustum and T. punctatum)

Urocerus gigas

Xyleborus spp. (except

Xyleborus affinis, X. catulus, X. discretus, X. ferrugineus,

X. guatemalensis, X.

horridus, X. imbellis, X.

intrusus, X. macer, X.

morulus, X. palatus, X.

perebeae, X. posticus, X. pseudotenuis, X. rugicollis, X.

sharpi, X. spathipennis, X.

spinulosus, X. squamulatus,

X. subductus, X. tolimanus,

X. vespatorius, X. vismiae

and X. volvulus)

Xylosandrus spp. (except Xylosandrus curtulus, X.

morigerus and X.

zimmermanni)

Mite

Eotetranychus sexmaculatus

Bacteria

Clavibacter michiganensis pv.

nebraskensis

Erwinia chrysanthemi

Pseudomonas putida

Pseudomonas viridiflava

Pyricularia oryzae

Ralstonia solancearum race 3

Xanthomonas orizae pv.

oryzae

Xanthomonas oryzae pv.

oryzicola

ICPR MEXICO Status: APPROVED 21 November 2023 Page 13 of 27

Fungi

Aecidium cantensis Dipodascus geotrichum

Alternaria dauci Fusicoccum luteum
Alternaria radicina Glomerella cingulata

Angiosorus solani Ophiobolus porphyrogonus

Botryosphaeria dothidea Phoma andina
Botryosphaeria parva Phoma eupyrena

Botryosphaeria stevensii Phoma exigua var. exigua

Cercospora carotae Phoma macrostoma

Claviceps pupurea Phona exiqua var. foveata

Cochliobolus hawaiiensis Puccinia horiana
Colletotrichum acutatum Tilletia barclayana
Cryptosporiopsis spp. Tilletia controversa

Diaporthe actinidiaeTilletia indicaDiaporthe perniciosaTilletia triticiDiaporthe spp.Urocystus tritici

Nematodes

Aphelenchiodes besseyi Globodera rostochiensis

Aphelenchoides ritzemabosi Heterodera avenae

Ditylenchus dipsaci (potato Heterodera oryzae and maize races)

Heterodera zeae

Viruses and virus like organisms

Andean mosaico deformante Potato black ringspot virus

virus Potato mop top virus

Andean potato latent virus

Potato virus Y strain Yc

Andean potato mottle virus

Potato yellow vein virus

Arabic mosaic virus Potato phyllody phytoplasma

Arracacha virus Potato round leaf phytoplasma

Citrus tristeza virus Potato virus T
Plum pox potyvirus Potato virus U

ICPR MEXICO Status: APPROVED 21 November 2023 Page 14 of 27

Potato virus V
Tobacco ringspot virus

Tomato black ring virus
Tomato spotted wilt virus

Weeds

Acanthospermum hispidum

Aegilops cylindrica

Ambrosia trifida

Aspera spica-venti

Borreria alata

Cuscuta compacta

Cuscuta corylii

Cuscuta cupulata

Cuscuta cuspidata

Carthamus lanatus Cuscuta dentatasquamata

Carthamus oxyacantha Cuscuta denticulata
Centaurea diffusa Cuscuta epilinum
Centaurea maculosa Cuscuta epithymum

Centaurea repens Cuscuta erosa

Cirsium arvense Cuscuta europaea
Chrysopogon aciculatus Cuscuta exalta

Commelina benghalensis Cuscuta fasciculata Conringia orientalis Cuscuta gigantea Coronopus didymus Cuscuta glabrior Crupina vulgaris Cuscuta globulosa Cuscuta approximata Cuscuta glomerata Cuscuta attenuata Cuscuta gronovii Cuscuta australis Cuscuta harperi Cuscuta babylonica Cuscuta hialini

Cuscuta boldinghii Cuscuta howelliana
Cuscuta brachycalyx Cuscuta japonica
Cuscuta breviflora Cuscuta jepsonii
Cuscuta brevistyla Cuscuta kotschyi
Cuscuta burrellii Cuscuta lehmanniana

Cuscuta californica
Cuscuta cassytoides
Cuscuta ceanothii
Cuscuta cephalanthii
Cuscuta chilensis
Cuscuta chinensis
Cuscuta chinensis
Cuscuta chilensis
Cuscuta chinensis
Cuscuta chinensis
Cuscuta chinensis
Cuscuta chinensis
Cuscuta chinensis
Cuscuta chinensis

ICPR MEXICO Status: APPROVED 21 November 2023 Page 15 of 27

Cuscuta nevadensis Gastrolobium grandiflorum
Cuscuta occidentalis Heracleum mantegazzianum

Cuscuta palestina Imperata cylindrica
Cuscuta pedicellata Indigofera hirsuta
Cuscuta pentagona Ischaemum rugosum
Cuscuta planiflora Leptochloa chinensis

Cuscuta plattensis Linaria vulgaris

Cuscuta ploygonorum Lithospermum arvense
Cuscuta pulchella Lycium ferocissimum

Cuscuta racemosa Malva silvestris
Cuscuta reflexa Matricaria inodora
Cuscuta rostrata Matricaria maritima
Cuscuta runyonii Matricaria perforata

Cuscuta salina Melaleuca quinquenervia
Cuscuta sandwichiana Melastoma malabathricum

Cuscuta squamata

Cuscuta squamata

Mikania cordata

Cuscuta suaveolens

Nassella trichotoma

Cuscuta subinclusa

Cuscuta suksdorfii

Cuscuta trifolii

Cuscuta triumbirati

Neslia paniculata

Orobanche bulbosa

Orobanche californica

Orobanche cooperi

Cuscuta tuberculata Orobanche corymbosa
Cuscuta umbrosa Orobanche dugesii
Cuscuta vetchii Orobanche fasciculata

Cuscuta worneri Orobanche ludoviciana

Digitaria scalarum

Digitaria velutina

Echium vulgare

Crobanche multicaulis

Orobanche parishii

Emex australis

Orobanche pinorum

Emex spinosa

Crobanche uniflora

Eragrostis plana

Crobanche valida

Euphorbia esula

Orobanche vallicola

Euphorbia prunifolia Oryza longistaminata
Fimbristylis dichotoma Oryza punctata

Galega officinalis Oryza rufipogon

Galeopsis tetrahit Paspalum scrobiculatum

ICPR MEXICO Status: APPROVED 21 November 2023 Page 16 of 27

Pennisetum macrourum Polygonum convolvulus

Pennisetum pedicellatum Ranunculus repens

Pennisetum polystachion Rottboellia exaltata

Phalaris tuberosa Rubus fruticosus

Plantago afra Rubus moluccanus

Plantago albicans Saccharum spontaneum

Plantago arenaria Salsola vermiculata
Plantago aristata Setaria pallide-fusca

Plantago asiatica

Plantago australis

Plantago camtschatica

Plantago coronapus

Silene noctiflora

Solanum viarum

Striga angustifolia

Striga asiatica

Plantago elongata Striga aspera
Plantago heterophylla Striga densiflora

Plantago hirtella Striga elegans

Plantago indica Striga gesnerioides
Plantago japonica Striga hermontheca
Plantago lagopus Striga hermonthica

Plantago lanceolata Striga hirsuta
Plantago media Striga lutea

Plantago psyllium Striga orobanchoides
Plantago purshii Striga senegalensis
Plantago pusila Striga thunbergii

Plantago ramosa Themeda quadrivalvis

Plantago rugelii Thlaspi arvense
Plantago serraria Ulex europaeus

Plantago tomentosa Urochloa panicoides
Plantago varia Vaccaria pyramidata

Plantago virginica

List 2 A2 Quarantine Pests

Insects

Ostrinia nubilalis Rhizotrogus majalis

Bacteria

ICPR MEXICO Status: APPROVED 21 November 2023 Page 17 of 27

Clavibacter michiganensis subsp. sepedonicus

Fungi

Synchytrium endobioticum

Oospora pustulans syn. Polyscytalum pustulans

Nematodes

Globodera pallida

Viruses and virus like organism

Potato virus Y strain Yn

Potato yellow dwarf virus

Potato spindle tuber viroid

2.5 Inspection on Arrival

All consignments of imported plant material are subject to inspection by Mexican authorities for phytosanitary purposes on arrival.

2.6 Sampling Rate

Sampling rates upon arrival are based on the Grain Sampling and Treatment Manual, published by the Secretaria de Agricultura, Ganaderia y Desarrollo Rural (SAGAR). MPI have been unable to source a copy of this document.

2.7 Ports of Entry

Commodities are restricted to enter Mexico via the following specified ports ref Norm 7

Northern Border: Baja California Chihuahua Colombia

Ciudad Reynosa Coahuila City Juárez

Colorado

Matamoros Mexicali

Nogales and San Luis Río

Nuevo Laredo Nuevo León Piedras Negras Sonora City Acuña

Tamaulipas

Tecate and Tijuana

Southern border:

ICPR - MEXICO Status: APPROVED 140February 2024 Page 18 of 27

Chiapas Hidalgo City International airport of Toluca, State of Mexico

Airports:

International airport of Guadalajara, Jalisco International airport of Mérida, Yucatan International airport of Mexico City, Federal District International airport of Monterrey, Nuevo León

Ports:

Colima
Manzanillo
Mazatlán
Michoacán
Oaxaca and Lázaro Cárdenas
Salina Cruz
Sinaloa
Tamaulipas
Tampico and Altamira
Veracruz

2.8 Transit Requirements

ref Questionnaire

Transit of a commodity through a third country en-route to Mexico is prohibited.

Prior permission must be sourced from SAGAR for commodities, which transit Mexico en-route to a third country.

2.9 Wood Packaging

Refer to forestry ICPR for Mexico, link below:

http://www.mpi.govt.nz/law-and-policy/requirements/importing-countries-phytosanitary-requirements/forestry-icprs/mexico/

3 Commodity Class Requirements

<u>General note</u>: All plants, their products and by-products must be free of soil and other parts of plant (including leaves, twigs, straw etc) than the product being imported

3.1 Fruit and Vegetables

3.1.1 Fresh Fruit and Vegetables

Conditions:

Phytosanitary certificate required. Phytosanitary import permit not required. Refer Section 4.1.1 for Specific Commodity Requirements. If commodity is not listed with Section 4.1.1 refer Sections 1.2, 2.1 and 2.2.

ICPR - MEXICO Status: APPROVED 140February 2024 Page 19 of 27

3.1.2 Dried Fruit and Vegetables

Conditions:

Phytosanitary import permit not required. Refer Sections 1.2, 2.1, 2.2 and 4 1 2

3.1.3 Frozen Fruit and Vegetables

Conditions:

Phytosanitary certificate not required. Phytosanitary import permit not required. Refer Sections 1.2, 2.1, 2.2 and 4.1.3.

3.2 Cut Flowers and Foliage

3.2.1 Fresh Cut Flowers and Foliage

Conditions:

Phytosanitary certificate required. Phytosanitary import permit not required. Refer Sections 1.2, 2.1, 2.2 and 4.2.1.

3.2.2 Dried Cut Flowers and Foliage

Conditions:

Phytosanitary certificate required. Phytosanitary import permit not required. Refer Sections 1.2, 2.1, 2.2 and 4.2.2.

3.3 Nursery Stock

3.3.1 Budwood/Cuttings

Conditions:

Phytosanitary certificate required. Phytosanitary import permit not required. Refer Sections 1.2, 2.1, 2.2 and 4.3.1.

3.3.2 Bulbs/tubers/corms/rhizomes etc.

Conditions:

Phytosanitary certificate required. Phytosanitary import permit not required. Refer Sections 1.2, 2.1, 2.2 and 4.3.2.

3.3.3 Whole Plants

Conditions:

ICPR - MEXICO Status: APPROVED 140February 2024 Page 20 of 27

Phytosanitary certificate required. Phytosanitary import permit not required. Refer Sections 1.2, 2.1, 2.2 and 4.3.3.

3.3.4 Tissue Culture

Conditions:

Phytosanitary certificate required. Phytosanitary import permit not required. Refer Sections 1.2, 2.1, 2.2 & 4.3.4

This type of material can be imported regardless of the species accompanied by a Phytosanitary Certificate, together with a copy of documentation issued by an official agency of the exporting country that certifies that the imported material was produced by meristem culture or other parts of the plant and found free of pests.

3.4 Seeds, Grains and Nuts

3.4.1 Seeds, Grains and Nuts for Sowing

Conditions:

Phytosanitary certificate required. Phytosanitary import permit not required. Refer Sections 1.2, 2.1, 2.2 and 4.4.1.

3.4.2 Seeds, Grains and Nuts for Consumption

Conditions:

Phytosanitary certificate required. Phytosanitary import permit not required. Refer Sections 1.2, 2.1, 2.2 and 4.4.2.

3.4.3 Seeds, Grains and Nuts for Processing

Conditions:

Phytosanitary certificate required. Phytosanitary import permit not required. Refer Sections 1.2, 2.1, 2.2 and 4.4.3.

3.5 Growing Media

Conditions:

Phytosanitary import permit not required. Phytosanitary certificate not required.

Growing media must be inert and free of soil. ref Norm 7 / Questionnaire

Refer Sections 1.2, 2.1, 2.2 and 4.5.

ICPR - MEXICO Status: APPROVED 140February 2024 Page 21 of 27

3.6 Wood Packaging

All wood packaging material arriving in Mexico must comply with ISPM 15 GUIDELINES FOR REGULATING WOOD PACKAGING MATERIAL IN INTERNATIONAL TRADE 2009. Refer attached url:

https://www.ippc.int/servlet/BinaryDownloaderServlet/133703 ISPM 15 Revised 2009.doc?filename=1240489124097 ISPM 15 Revised 2009 E.doc &refID=133703

Also refer to Mexico's Forestry ICPR's for Wood packaging requirements on the following url:

http://www.mpi.govt.nz/law-and-policy/requirements/importing-countries-phytosanitary-requirements/forestry-icprs/mexico/

4 Commodity Specific Requirements

<u>General note</u>: All plants, their products and by-products must be free of soil and other parts of plant (including leaves, twigs, straw etc) than the product being imported

4.1 Fresh Fruit and Vegetables

4.1.1 Fresh Fruit and Vegetables

Actinidia deliciosa

Kiwifruit

Actinidia chinensis

Conditions:

Phytosanitary certificate required. Phytosanitary import permit not required.

Additional declaration

"This product was inspected and found to be free of any biological stage of the pest *Epiphyas postvittana*."

Malus spp. Apple

Conditions:

Phytosanitary certificate required. Phytosanitary import permit not required.

Additional declaration

"This product was inspected and found to be free of any biological stage of the pest *Epiphyas postvittana*."

ICPR - MEXICO Status: APPROVED 140February 2024 Page 22 of 27

<u>Pyrus spp.</u> <u>Pear</u>

Conditions:

Phytosanitary certificate required. Phytosanitary import permit not required.

Additional declaration

"This product was inspected and found to be free of any biological stage of the pest *Epiphyas postvittana*."

4.1.2 Dried Fruit and Vegetables

Refer Sections 1.2, 2.1, 2.2 and 3.1.2.

<u>Pisum sativum</u> <u>Pea</u>

Conditions:

Phytosanitary certificate required. Phytosanitary import permit not required.

<u>Zea mays</u> <u>Corn</u>

Conditions:

Phytosanitary certificate and import permit not required. Consignment will be subjected to inspection on arrival at the port of entry.

4.1.3 Frozen Fruit and Vegetables

Conditions:

Refer Section 1.2, 2.1, 2.2 and 3.1.3

4.2 Cut Flowers and Foliage

4.2.1 Fresh Cut Flowers and Foliage

Conditions:

Refer Sections 1.2, 2.1, 2.2 and 3.2.1.

ICPR - MEXICO Status: APPROVED 140February 2024 Page 23 of 27

4.2.2 Dried Cut Flowers and Foliage

Conditions:

Refer Sections 1.2, 2.1, 2.2 and 3.2.2.

4.3 Nursery Stock

4.3.1 Budwood / Cuttings

Conditions:

Refer Sections 1.2, 2.1, 2.2 and 3.3.1.

4.3.2 Bulbs / tubers / corms / rhizomes etc.

Conditions:

Refer Sections 1.2, 2.1, 2.2 and 3.3.2.

<u>Lilium spp.</u> <u>Lily</u>

Conditions:

Phytosanitary certificate, additional declaration and treatment required. Phytosanitary import permit not required.

Additional declaration:

"The production site was inspected during the growing season and found free from *Aphelenchoides fragariae*, *Ditylenchus dipsaci*, *Globodera rostochiensis*, and *Pratylenchus vulnus*"

And

"The product is free from Botrytis tulipae and Tobacco rattle virus."

The following additional declaration is required for growing media, if used as packing material:

"The substrate is inert, used for the first time, and it is free of pests"

Treatment required:

Bulbs must be treated in New Zealand by immersion in Imidacloprid at 7grams/a.i (active ingredient) per 100L of water. The treatments must be endorsed on the phytosanitary certificate.

Zantedeschia spp Calla

Conditions:

Phytosanitary certificate and additional declaration required.

Phytosanitary import permit not required. Certificate of origin required.

ICPR - MEXICO Status: APPROVED 140February 2024 Page 24 of 27

Additional declaration:

"Inspected and found free from Dasheen mosaic virus, *Cercospora callae* and *Ditylenchus dipsaci*"

4.3.3 Whole Plants

Conditions:

Refer Sections 1.2, 2.1 and 3.3.3.

4.3.4 Tissue Culture

Conditions:

Refer Sections 1.2, 2.1 and 3.3.4.

This type of material can be imported regardless of the species accompanied by a Phytosanitary Certificate, together with a copy of documentation issued by an official agency of the exporting country that certifies that the imported material was produced by meristem culture or other parts of the plant and found free of pests.

Additional declaration:

"This in-vitro material was produced by meristem culture or other parts of the plant and found free of pests"

4.4 Seeds, Grains and Nuts

4.4.1 Seeds, Grains and Nuts for Sowing

Conditions:

Refer Sections 1.2. 2.1. 2.2 and 3.4.1.

<u>Daucus carota</u> <u>Carrot</u>

Conditions:

Phytosanitary certificate, additional declaration and treatment required. Phytosanitary import permit is not required.

- Seeds must be free of soil/earth, plant residues and in new closed packaging.
- Seed must be treated with water at 50°C for 30 minutes; followed by the application of one of the following products
 - Thiram at 80 gms / a.i. (active ingredient) per 100kg of seeds; or
 - Iprodione at 150 gms / a.i. per 100L of water; or
 - Iprodione at 15 gms / a.i. per 100kg of seeds.

ICPR - MEXICO Status: APPROVED 140February 2024 Page 25 of 27

The treatments must be endorsed on the phytosanitary certificate. Seed will be inspected and sampled for laboratory testing for virus, weed and bacteriology analyses upon entry into Mexico.

Additional declaration:

"The seeds were subject to phytosanitary diagnosis and found free of Arabic mosaic virus, *Cirsium arvense*, *Cuscuta epithymum*, *Orobanche minor*, *Matricaria inodora and Phalaris tuberosa*."

Raphanus sativus

<u>Radish</u>

Conditions:

Phytosanitary certificate, additional declaration and treatment required. Phytosanitary import permit is not required.

- Seeds must be free of soil/earth, plant residues and in new closed packaging.
- Seed must be treated with any of the following products:
 - Captan at 72 to 144 gms/a.i (active ingredient)) per 100kg of seeds; or
 - Fludioxonil at 2.54 to 4.99 gms/a.i (active ingredient) per 100kg of seeds

The treatments must be endorsed on the phytosanitary certificate. Seed will be inspected and sampled for laboratory testing for virus, weed and bacteriology analyses upon entry into Mexico.

Additional declaration:

"The seeds were subject to phytosanitary diagnosis and found free of Xanthomonas campestris pv. raphani, Pseudomonas viridiflava, Tobacco streak virus (TSV) and Radish yellow edge virus (RYEV)".

4.4.2 Seeds, Grains and Nuts for Consumption

Conditions:

Refer Sections 1.2, 2.1, 2.2 and 3.4.2.

4.4.3 Seeds, Grains and Nuts for Processing

Conditions:

Refer Sections 1.2, 2.1, 2.2 and 3.4.3.

ICPR - MEXICO Status: APPROVED 140February 2024 Page 26 of 27

4.5 Growing Media and Packing Material

Conditions:

Refer Sections 1.2, 2.1, 2.2 and 3.5.

Packing material must be free of soil and other parts of the plant than the product being exported.

4.6 Microorganisms, Microbiologicals and Laboratory Specimens

Conditions:

Refer Sections 1.2, 2.1 and 2.2.

4.7 Miscellaneous

Conditions:

Refer Sections 1.2, 2.1 and 2.2

ICPR - MEXICO Status: APPROVED 140February 2024 Page 27 of 27